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- Proceedings at Gvening JPleetings,

Mareh 4, 1863,
BASSETT SMITH, Esq, F.G.8, F.8.A, in the Chair.

Mr, W. H, Overarr read an interesting paper on “Inedited London
Tokens,” exhibiting from the cabinets of various eollectors a series of
examples Hlustrative of the subject. Many of these were remarkably fine
and previously unknown. Me, Overall also exhibited from the collection
of F. Bousfield, Esq. a collection of antiguities, which comprised some
curious examiples of early badges, scals, spoons, &e. The following as
described by Mr. Overall may be briefly referred to: o silver gilt badge
said to bave been conneeted with the Mercers’ Company, with a motto,
“ Thincke and thancke God, 1625;" a brass seal of Richard de Redvers
(Earl Rivers) who died 1184, This seal is not perfect, but suificient
remains to show a sleeping dog or wolf below o griffin displayed. Prior to
the death of the Earl of Devon he substituted s lion for the sboveanms,  An
enamelled ring of Willlam Barl of Gloucester, who died 1182, An enamelled
badge of Philippa, Queen of Kaward 111y this queen is said to bave led
the army which defeated the Seots at Neville's Cross. An ancient wonden
seal, conjuetured do have been fn use prior to the intreduciion of heraldic
arms; it s stmilar in chargeter to the old wool seals, &e.

Mr. Jonx k. Price exhibited a series of unpublished tokens; also an
exaraple of the leaden pilgrinys sign, represcnting a mitred head and bust,
lately recovered from the Thames.

April 1, 1863.
CHARLES 4, SUOPPEE, Bsq., ta the Chalr.

Mr. J. J. Winnmson exbibited an clegantly-carved wooden easket dis-
vovered in a salt mine in South Amcevics, and supposed to have belonged to
the extinet tribe of the Incas; also some curious alabaster figures obtained
from the churches there.

Mr. W, II. Overarn read a paper on the birthplace of Chaucer. Hecom-
menced by remarking that while the biogzraphers of the Poet believe kim to
kave been born in the ¢ity, and to have heen a member of one of the Com-
panies, none have hitherts been able 1o define his residence.  Ife exhibited
a copy of o MS, dated 4 Bisherd 11, being a transfer of premises from
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Chauncer to Herbury, in the parish of St. Martin's in the Vintry. It would
appear from this deed that this gpot was probably the father's residence,
and there are good grounds for supposing that here Chaucer was horn and
lived. His father being a vintner he was born free of that craft. 'T'hese
facts are strengthened by a passage in his Beok of Love, book i sect. 5:
“ Also the Citye of London, that is to me dere and swete, in which I was
forth growen, and more kindely love have I to that place than to any other
in yerth {carth), as every kindly creture hath full appetite to that place of
his kindly engendrare, and to wilne reste and peace in thab stede to abide.”

Me. Overall next exhibited a Scotch tally of Edward I, for the payment
of 8 certain sum of money to Allen of 54, Botolph, holden for the defence of
the town of 8¢. Jobn de Perth. He also briefly deseribed several antiguities
kindly lent for exhibition by Frederick Bousfield, Esq.  Among these were
two bronze Roman locks, with hasp and keys, discovered at Colchester 5 also
specimens of filule in bronze and lead ; likewise fwo curious examples of
the fool's bauble, and a Bellarmine, bearing on the side s fool's eap and
bells.  Several interesting bistorical facts copnected with these objects
were addueced.

May 6, 1863.
ALFRED WHITE, Esa., F.8.A,, F.L.S, in the Chair.

Mz, Gronae Russerr, Frexcu deseribed a standard gallon measure in
bronze of the reign of Tlenry VIL, and a small Boman hmp of the same
maetal, both exhibited by Messrs. Warner and SBon of Jowin Street. The
messure stands 124 inches high, the diameter at the mouth 9% inches,
at foot &3 nches.  Two bauds, each of three beadings, are roundd the mea-
sure, and between these is o raised flat band, whereon is the Yorkist badge
of the rese en spled, and the inseription in raised black letter, HENRICUS
SEPTIMUS between the Tudor badges, the greyhound and portenllis
{Beayforty, The handle is formed of the head and trunk of an elephant ;
on each side of the rim is o square noteh, as if to receive a covers; the metal
is of good thickness, The handle of the lamp is the crescent of Diana.

Mr. Caarres Barny made some interesting observations on medimval
iocks, ornamental ironwork, &e., and contributed a large and varied series
of deawings lastrative of his remarks. e also exbibited a curious lock
of Grerman workmanship, presmned to have been the diploma work of an
apprentice. 1t bore an inseription in German verse, with the date 1748,
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3rd June, 1863.
ALFRED WHITE, F.L.S., F,_S.A., in the Chair.

Mr. W. H. OveracL exhibited, by permission of F. Blades, esq. author
nf.a recent “Life of Caxton,” several fac-simileg of engravings from the
printer’s carly works. Ie observed that one represented the house of one
l?obert Large, in the Old Jewry, to whom Caxton was apprenticed in early
llf.e. Large was afterwards Mayor, and at the time of Caxton’s apprentice-
ship was probably one of the merchant princes of the City : it is said of him
that he sent more money to the king’s revenue, had more well-mounted
m.en, and spent larger sums on their appointments, than any merchant of
his day. After the expiration of his term, in 1466, Caxton was sent to
Bruges, and to his residence there may probébly be attributed his con-
nexion with printing, for there he must have acquired that great love for
it which resulted in its becoming the ultimate aim of his life. Many of
the engravings were extremely curious. The subjects for the most part
were allegorical, and comprised among them “ Mansion of Merchant Ad-
venturers at Bruges, inhabited by Caxton, 1470;" representations of the
“ Nativity #nd Passion of our Lord, from the Golden Legend, 1483 ;"
figures of printing presses and type- founding in the year 1520, and circa ;
Nustrations from ZEsop’s Fables, &c., and a very interesting leaf, the only
one of the book now left in existence, being the first page of the service
of the Transfiguration. This single page was lately discovered in the
Congregational Library, and purchased by the British Museum for 2007

Mr, Overall also described a series of antiquities exhibited by F. Bous-
field, esq., a small early metal pomander, or scent-box, on the lid of which
is a figure of Victory with a trumpet, and an extended arm holding a
wreath; two curious knife-handles, carved in morse ivory; also a lock
of the reign of Charles I., and a small inlaid early bolt lock; some speci-
mens of pewter vessels with handles, one of these dated 1653 ; and exam-
ples of paterw in the same metal, one as early apparently as 1578, with a
representation of a boar’s head.

Dr. Wiriiam Bern read a paper, entitled ¢ The Regal Deviees of the
Royal Families of England,” which was followed by some interesting ob-
servations by Mr. G. R. Frexcu on the same subject.

1st July, 1863.
JOHN FRANKLIN, Isq., in the Chair.

Mr. Cuaries BAtny read aninteresting paper “On the Mode of Roofing
Buildings in the Middle Ages,” with a view to ascertain the style of roof
originally placed over the Guildhall of London, and to consider the proposed

restorations.
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11th January, 1864.

A. WHITE, Esq., F.S.A,, F.L.S,, in the Chair.

Mr. G. R. Frencr read a paper “On the Stone Coffins found on the
north side of the Temple Chureh in 1862,” and especially with reference to
one bearing the inscription ¢ Philippus Hilario,” which he believed to be
the monument of Hilary, Bishop of Chichester, one of the most learned men
of his day, and one who bore a distinguished part in the contest which
raged between King Henry (Beauclerk) and Archbishop Themas & Becket.
He was in 1148 consecrated Bishop of Chichester, by virtue of a mandate
from Pope Eugenius III., and soon afterwards was elected Archbishop of
York, but in consequence of a dispute was not translated to that province.
He took a decided part with reference to the contests between the king
and clergy, and stood alone, at one time, in support of the monarch, and
was afterwards one of the Royal Commissioners opposing the Archbishops’
appeal to Rome, and died in 1169. The present Temple Church being the
successor to a church which stood between Fleet Street and Holborn, and
the Bishops of Chichester having a palace in Chancery fane on the site now
called Chichester Rents, Mr. French concluded, that, in the event of Bishop
Hilary having died whilst in London, he might probably have been buried
in the church of the Templars, and that the coffin of so eminent a person
would, upon the completion of the new church, have been removed thither.

The coffin is 6ft. 9 by 2ft. 2} wide at the head, sloping to 1ft. 3 at the
foat 5 it is slightly coped, and has a raised ridge down the centre, but is
quite plain in other respects. The inscription is in two lines on one side of’
the ridge; on the ridge itself is the letter T.

8th February, 1864.
J. W. BUTTERWORTH, Esa., F.8.A., in the Chair.

Mvr. Batny read a paper on one of the effigies in the Temple Charel,
hitherto ascribed to Geoffrey Magnaville, Earl of Essex. Tracing briefly
the history of that notorious character until his death, and his burial in the
round of the Temple Church, he stated that the arms of the De Magnaville
family were, Quarterly, or and gu., and Dugdale says (without mentioning
any authority) that Geoffrey added an escarbuncle. When the church was
restored, the figure and shield were freed from whitewash and dirt, and the
bearings appear to be, two fesses dancettée, and over all an escarbuncle,
and therefore materially different from those ascribed to the Earl. The
efligy itself, although of a very carly character, cannot be placed before the

YOuL. I1L |88
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reign of King Richard the First. From these facts he concluded that the
figure does not represent Geofirey de Magnaville as hitherto supposed.*

Mr. OveraLn exhibited and described photographs of the Pledge Cup of
the Worshipful Company of Founders.

Mr. J. E. Price read a paper “On a Kiln for burning Encaustic Tiles,”
discovered near Farringdon Road, Clerkenwell, which is printed at p. 31 of
the present volume.

Mr. I1. W. Sass exhibited some Roman remains found while excavating
in St. Mildred’s Court, Poultry.

14th Mareh, 1864.
CHARLES BAILY, Esq., F.S.A,, in the Chair.

Mr. W. H. Overant read a paper *On the Writings of Geoflrey
Chaucer.” He commenced by noticing his works in their relation to
archzology, and pointed out their importance to antiquaries, on account of
the valuable information they furnish regarding the manners and customs
of the English people in the reigns of Edward IIL and Richard 1., and
proceeded to show that the fact of Chaucer not being a general favorite
arose from the quaintness of his style, and the antiquity which clings to his
writings, he being often tedions and obscure, and his orthography diflicult,
but that his descriptions are life-like and thoroughly English, and his
characters may always be distinguished as inhabitants of his own land.
The paper concluded with a reference to the various portraits of the poet.

Mr. George RussELL Frewcu contributed some observations on the
same subject, tracing the biography of Chaucer from his birth in London in
1328 ; his education at the university ; his co-operation in the army with
which Edward III. invaded France; and his subsequent appointment in
the customs; on to the time when he fell into straitened ecircumstances,
which were relieved by the grant of a pension in 1399, in addition to an
annuity formerly granted by Richard II., and to his death, which occurred
in the following year, on the 25th October, 1400, at the age of seventy-two.

* See further on this subject an article entitled ** The Effigy attributed to Geoffrey
de Magnaville, and the other Effigies in the Temple Church,’” which is published in
The Herald and Genealogist, (May 1865,) vol. iii. pp, 97—112. It is accompanied
by an engraving copied from Mr. Edward Richardson’s Monumental Efigies of the
Temple Church, showing the two dancettes, and perhaps indications of a third. The
shield is certainly not Quarterly, and the escarbuncle is merely constructional, not
heraldie. The person for whom the efligy was really intended has not been ascer-
tained ; but its costume shows it to be of a date very nearly, if not quite, half a
century posterior to that of the death of Geoffrey de Maguaville, Earl of Essex, in
1144, (Edit.)
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He was buried in Westminster Abbey, where a tomb was erected to his
memory by Nicholas Brigham, a poet, in 1556.

Mr. Tuomas Wiers exhibited some ancient finger rings found in Liondon,
with other objects of interest from his collection.

11th April, 1864.
ALFRED WHITE, Esq., F.S8.A., F.L.S, in the Chair.

Mr. G.R. FrencH read an interesting paper © On the localities connected
with Shakespeare’s Playsin general, but especially the places in London and
Westminster recorded in the Histories from King Richard IT. to Lenry VIIL
inclusive.”

9th May, 1864.
JOHN FRANKLIN, Esq., in the Chair.

Some discussion tock place on the subject of Mr. French’s paper, read
at the previous meeting, in which Mr., Charles Baily referred especially to
the Tower of London and Westminster Abbey and Hall; and the Rev.
Thomas Ilugo to Eiy Ilouse and Crosby Place; and Mr. Overall to Guild-
hall. The remarks were concluded by a paper by Mr. FrRENcH on the death
of the two young Princes in the Tower.

13th June, 1864.
J. W. BUTTERWORTII, Esq., F.S.A., in the Chair.

Mr. J. E. Price read a paper, entitled ¢ Reminiscences of the Steelyard,
formerly in Upper Thames Street, with an account of the Antiquities re-
cently discovered on its site,” which is printed at p. 67 of the present
volume.

Mr. W. H. Overarr exhibited a series of antiquities from the museum
of Frederick Bousfield, Esq., and made some observations on the more
remarkable objects in the collection. He remarked that the series of
“ whorls” was unique and of peculiar interest. In former times these little
circular pieces of stone or other material, with a hole in the centre, were
thought by antiquaries to have served the purposes of ¢ buttons,” but there
is little doubt that they were used in the operation of spinning wool or flax,
and were intended to put the spindle in, when in motion. They much
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resemble the wheels ov whorls—* vorticelium”—of the Romans. These were
formed of *stene, hone, or baked clay,” and hawe frequently been found
in different parts of London. Spindle wheels have also been found in
Seotland and the Hebrides, and in varions parts of England.  Oue, tormed
of grey terra eotta, was exhumed at Alchester from o Roman excavation,
and another s described in the Nemin Brifawnica as being 1% inch n
diameter.* Of those exhibited, there were two very good examples of the
Anglo-Saxon whorl in terra cotta, five medieval specimens baving many
curious devices upon them, one with an owl represented, with various let-
ters and cvidences of Gothie tracery. These are all from about 1§ inch to
2 inches in diameter, and much resemble the Mexican ¢ Tosca.”

Mr. Overall then deseribed a collection of studs from the reign of
Henry VIIL. to the present century, a curious metal casket, and 2 jug of
a very nondescript character. It is of large size, and has the mouth
formed like a modern tap instead of the ordinary spout. Itis benutifully
ornamented, and entirely covered with a bright green glaze.

A letter was then read from Mr, ¥ Wallen, anuouncing that a very large
aad fine portion of the old London Wall hud recently become exposed to
view by the removal of some warchouses in Cooper's How, Crutched Friars.
Mr. Wallew's remarks appear at p. 82 of the present volume.

9th January, 1865,
JOHN GOUGH NICHQLS, Xsq., F.S.A, in the Chair.

Rey. Trmomas Huao, LA, ¥.8.A., gave n paper on « Anclent Wills, and
the Tlustrations they afford to Loadon Life and History.”

Messrs, Francis and Sow, Avchitects, Guildford Street, kindly contri-
buted for exhibition three remarkable specimens of Roman Amphors Iately
discovered in Clement’s Lane, Lombard Sireet.

The Cuarrman exhibited a curious two-quart Mug of Delft ware, made
for the Butchers' Company, and orpamented with their arms, crest, and
supporters,

13th February, 1865.
Rev. THOMAS HUGO, M.A., F8.A, in the Chair.

Mr. Tuomas MitBourns read a paper on “The Milbourne Almshouscs
lately standing in Crutched Friavs, with some account of their founder and
Lis fawmily.” He obscrved that these buildings, familiarly known as the

* Hee also the paper entitled “On the Distaff and Spindle, as the Insignia of the

Female Sex in former fimes,” by J. ¥, Akerman, Esq., late Secrctary S.A. in the
Avehweologis, val, xxxvis pp. 83101,
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Drapers’ Almshouses, were until recently to be seen on the right-hand side
of Cooper’s Row, in passing to Tower I1ill. They were originally founded
by Sir Joh Milbourne, Lord Mayar of London in 1521, and were built of
brick partly faced with stone, and possessed a curious arched gateway and
2 high pitched roof of red tiles. Over the gateway, prior to its removal,
was an ancient piece of sculpture representing the Assnmption of the
Virgin, sapported by six angels, and on either side was a coat of arms, that
at the right hand being those of the Mithourne family and the other the
arms of the Drapers’ Company, while beneath were those of the Haber«
dashers’ Company. Under the sculpture there was an inseription in Latin,
which may be literally given as follows :—*To the praise of God and the
Glovicus Virgin Mary this work was erected by Sir John Milbourne,
Knight, and Alderman of the City, Anno Dom. 1535 This inscription
had disappeared long previous to the demolition of the old buildings, and
had been replaced by one in our mother fongue to the same effect. The
Drapers’ Company having purchased a site ap Tottenham High Cross, fve
miles from London, in 1862, erected thereon a large school-house for fifty
bays, and twenty-four almshouses. To these the sixteen almspeople in
Cooper’s Row were removed, with eight others from the Company’s alms-
houses in Beech Sireet, Barbican. Shortly after their removal the build-
ings were sold by auction and the site cleared for the erection of some new
warehouses. Care has been taken of the picce of sculpture referred to, the
same being now preserved in the houses at Tottenham.

Mr. Joun E. Price contributed some notes on a Roman interment in
West Siithfield, printed at p. 87 of the present volume.

13th March, 1865,
Rev. THOMAS HUGO, M.A,, F.8.A,, in the Chair,

Mr, Cusrres Baroy deseribed a series of Roman and Medimval Antiqui-
ties recently found in London, and kindly lent for exhibition by Mr. Walker
Baity.

The Crarrman contributed a paper upon the “ Real Origin and Founda-
tion of Christ’s Hospital.”

Mr. J. Goven Nicuows forwarded a communication entitled  The Lro-
gress of the Royal Hospitals.”

10th April, 1865.
ARTHUR ASUPITEL, Esq., F.8.A., in the Chair.

The Cuatruan read o paper upon the Original Drawings made by Siv
Christoplier Wren for St Paul’s Cathedral. An article, being a more
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extended account of the drawings by that celebrated architect now
belonging to the Dean and Chapter of St. Paul’s, has been since prepared
by Mr. Ashpitel, and appears at p. 39 of the present volume,

My, E. J. Barnon exhibited, by the kindness of the Lodge of Anti-
quity, an excellent portrait of Sir Christopher Wren, and a wooden mallet
formerly used by him,

8th May, 1865.
Rev. THOMAS HUGO, M.A,, F.8.A,, in the Chair.

The Crammman gave a description of some Painted Glass found under
remains of an old wall near 8t. John's Church, Clerkenwell.

Mr. Crcrn Brexr exhibited Roman Antiquities in iron ard bronze
from various parts of the city.

12th Juue, 18635.

J. G. WALLER, Bsa., F.8.A,, in the Chair.

Rev. Tuomas Huco, F.8.A,, read a paper on “ The llistory of Painted
Glass ;” and a variety of specimens of stained glass were exhibited by Mr,
Massuaarns and Mr. Suorrez,

15th January, 1866,
ALFRED WHITE, Bsa., ¥.8.A, F.L.S,, in the Chair.

Mr. Wizzsam Tavrer, F.8.A., read an interesting paper entitled * An
Historical Sketch of the Ancient Mansions of our Forefathers, in the refen
of Queen Elizabeth and her successors, in the County of Middlesex and
City of London.”

Mr. Warksr Bawy, Mr. Gunstox, and Mr. Prrcr exhibited sowme curi-
ous exampies of Roman cinerary urns lately exhumed while excavating for
the dead meat and poultry murket, Smithfield.
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12th February, 1866.
WILLIAM H. BLACK, Esq., F.S.A., in the Chair.

Mr. GeorGe RusseLn Frexcu read a paper entitled ¢ Tapestry and its
Relation to Sacred and Profane History.” TIilustrative of the subject there
were suspended round the meeting room some curious examples of tapestry
exhibited by Mr. J. FrankuiN, and a valuable piece of large dimen-
sions contributed by the Committee of the Sussex Archzological Society.
Mr. E. J. Barrox, Mr. Enstig, and Mr. Huxter also exhibited specimens
of needlework.

12th March, 1866.
Rev. THOMAS HUGO, M.A., F.S.A,, in the Chair.

Mr. Wittiam IHenry Brack, F.S.A., read an interesting paper “On
the real meaning and significance of the three sitting figures in the museum
of the Guildhall.” This picce of Roman sculpture, familiar, doubtless, to
many of our readers, was discovered some twenty years since in the course
of excavations for sewerage in Crutched Friars. It consists of three female
figures seated and bearing in their laps baskets containing what has hitherto
been thought to be fruit. It has been described at length in the journals
of various antiquarian societies, and has been considered to be a repre-
sentation of the ‘“Dex Matres,” or * Mother Goddesses” of the Roman
age. The object of Mr. Black’s communication was to controvert this
opinion, and, as suggested by the title of his paper, ascribe to them a far
different meaning and interpretation. Instead of goddesses he held them
to be impersonations of provinces, and the contents of the baskets to be
treasure, the tribute money of Roman times. The idea of representing
authority and government by a female seated is of very ancient origin ; and
Mr. Black adduced some references thereto that exist in Holy Writ, in
Isaiah. In the North of England such sculptures have been frequently
found, and in the museum at Newcastle is a group of five figures seated,
discovered among the remains of a portion of the Roman wall. Mr. Black
concluded his dissertation by reference to such Roman coins as have upon
their reverses representations of seated figures. In those relating to this
country, Britannia is in the sitting posture ; and this mode of symbolizing
power has been continued on our coins to the present day.

Mr. J. P. Emstis exhibited a large crayon drawing of the three figures,
in which the peculiarities of the sculpture were well displayed.
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14th May, 1866.
ALFRED WHITE, Esa., F.S.A,, in the Chair,

Rev. T. Huco read a highly interesting paper on “The last Survivors
of the Inmates of the Religious Houses in London and Middlesex.”

11th June, 1866.
G. R. FRENCH, Esq., in the Chair.

A paper was read by Mr. W. H. Brack, F.S.A,, on “The Primitive
Site, Extent, and Neighbourhood of Roman London.”

Mr. Arrrep Waite, F.8.A., made some remarks on Roman Coins lately
found at Battersea.





